
 

I. 

 

 

 

II. 
III. 
IV. 

 
 
V. 

VI. 
VII. 
 

 

 

VIII.

IX. 
X. 

 

 

 

 

1.1: 

1.2: 

1.3: 

CALL TO
ADOPT
SPECIA
Strateg

 
 
SUPERI

VISITO
APPRO
7.1: 

7.2: 

7.3: 

 CAE UP

MANAG
COMMI

10.1: 

 

 

 

 

Legal Upd
-Pending L
-Teacher A
The Board 
Workers C
The Board 
Voluntary
The Board 

O ORDER, I
TION OF AGE
AL RECOGNI
gy & Commu

A. Econo
  B.   ProSt

INTENDENT

ORS, PUBLIC
VAL OF MIN

A.  Open S
The Board 
Executive
The Board 
May 11, 20
A.  Financ
The Board 
2015. 

PDATE  

GEMENT REP
ITTEE REPO

Audit & F

A. Audit 
The Comm
following: 
-Items tha
the Board;
-Future top
-What is ne
B. IT Sec
The Board 
2015. 
C. Head 
The Board 
Financial R

 
7

 

date – Mr. Jo
Litigation 
Appeal Date 
d will receive a
Compensati

d will discuss a
y Transfer A

d will discuss V

NVOCATION
ENDA 
ITIONS (15 
unications 

omics State C
tart Nationa
T’S REPORT 

C COMMUNI
NUTES/EXEC
Session Min

d will vote on t
e Session Ac
d will consider 
015. 
cial Minutes 

d will consider 

PORT(S)  
RT(S) 

inance Com

& Finance C
mittee will pro

at are current
;  
pics the comm

needed to mov
curity Asses

d will consider 

Start/Early 
d will consider 
Report 

CCSD BO

M
75 Calhoun S

EXECU
4

ohn Emerso

a legal update
ion Claim 
a recommend

Appeals 
Voluntary Tra

OPE
5

N/MOMENT 

minutes) –

Champions
l Champions
– Mr. Micha

CATIONS  
CUTIVE SESS
nutes of Apri
the open sess
ction Items o
r a recommen

of the April
r a recommen

mmittee – Mr

Committee U
ovide informat

tly before the 

mittee plans to
ve the item fo
ssment 
r a recommen

Head Start 
r a recommen

 

ARD OF T
AGENDA

May 11, 201
St., Charlest

Business

UTIVE SESSI
4:00 p.m. 
on 

e and confirm

dation to appro

ansfer Appeals
EN SESSION
5:15 p.m. 
OF SILENCE

Mrs. Erica T

s 
ael Bobby, A

SION AGEN
il 27, 2015
sion minutes o
of May 11, 2

ndation to app

l 27, 2015 F
ndation to app

r. Todd Garr

Update 
ation and rece

e committee t

to bring forwa
orward? 

ndation to acce

Financial Re
ndation to app

RUSTEES

15 
ton, SC  294

ION 

m a teacher ap

rove a Worker

s. 
N 

E,  & PLEDG

Taylor, Execu

Acting Super

DA ITEMS 

of April 27, 20
2015 
prove executiv

Financial Min
prove the fina

rett  

eive input from

that have not 

ard; and  

cept the result

eport 
prove the Hea

01 

ppeal date. 

rs Compensat

E of ALLEGI

utive Direct

rintendent o

2015. 

ive session ac

nutes 
ancial minutes

m Board mem

t been brough

lts of the IT Se

ad Start/Early 

tion Claim. 

IANCE 

tor of 

of Schools 

ction items of 

es of April 27, 

mbers on the 

ht forward to 

Security Audit 

y Head Start 

Informatio
Action 

Action 

Action 

 

Action 
Recognition

 
 
 

 

Action 
Action 

  

f
Action 

Action 

 

 
 

 

e

o

Informatio

Informatio
Action 

Action

n/ 

ns 

on 

n/ 



 

  D. 2017-2022 Capital Program (Phase IV) – Capital Maintenance 
Reallocation 

The Board will consider a recommendation to approve a request to reallocate funds 
between the “Early Out” projects under the 2017-2022 Capital Program (Phase IV) 
Capital Maintenance. 

Action

  E. Sinking Fund Reallocation 
The Board will consider a recommendation to approve the request to reallocate funds 
attained from scope modification to Sinking Fund Projects.  

Action

  F. Fraser Building Demolition 
The Board will consider a recommendation to approve the demolition of the former 
Fraser ES. 

Action

  G. 1st Reading of the Budget  
The Board will consider a recommendation to approve the 1st Reading of the 2015-2016 
Budget. 

Action 

  H. Middle School Transportation Adjustment 1 
The Board will consider a recommendation to approve the middle school bell times 
recommendation that meets the goals set forth in creating equity across the district. 

Action 

  I. Middle School Transportation Adjustment 2 
The Board will consider a recommendation to approve a schedule for implementation 
that will be fully in effect and operational by July 15, 2016. 

Action 

 10.2: Policy & Personnel Committee – Mr. Tripp Wiles   

  A. Policy Committee Update 
The Committee will provide information and receive input from Board members on the 
following: 
-Items that are currently before the committee that have not been brought forward to 
the Board;  
-Future topics the committee plans to bring forward; and  
-What is needed to move the item forward? 

Information 

 10.3: Strategic Education Committee – Rev. Chris Collins  
  A.  Strategic Education Committee Update 

The Committee will provide information and receive input from Board members on the 
following: 
-Items that are currently before the committee that have not been brought forward to 
the Board;  
-Future topics the committee plans to bring forward; and  
-What is needed to move the item forward? 

Information 

XI. POTENTIAL CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS  
 11.1:   A.  Adoption of Timeline for Receiving Charter School Applications 

The Board will consider a recommendation to adopt a timeline for receiving charter 
school applications. 

Action 

     B.  Laura Brown Funds - Darby, Coats, Mack and Staubes 
  The Board will consider a recommendation to disburse Laura Brown Funds. 

Action 

XII. NEW BUSINESS  



 
75 Calhoun Street, Charleston, SC 29401 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

 

TO:  Board of Trustees 

FROM: Michael L. Bobby 

DATE:  May 11, 2015 

SUBJECT: IT Security Audit 2015 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is hereby recommended that the Charleston County School District Board of 

Trustees accept the results of the IT Security Audit 2015, as presented by Networking Institute of 

Technology, Inc.  

  

The material is submitted for:   Action  Information 

   Open  Executive 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 

Mr. Michael Bobby  

Acting Superintendent of Schools 

 
Dr. Lisa Herring 

Deputy Superintendent for Academics 

 

Cathleen M. Milne, CPA, CIA, CRMA 

Director of Internal Audit 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

    

Committee Recommendation(s):   

 

Mr. Todd Garrett, Chair 

Audit & Finance Committee 

 

 



 

INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT 

MAY 11, 2015 
 

 
SUBJECT:  IT Security Audit 2015 

 
 

BACKGROUND:  In approving Internal Audit’s 2013 annual audit plan, the Audit & 
Finance Committee requested an out-sourced security assessment of the District’s 

information technology.  To meet this request, Internal Audit and Information 
Technology partnered to develop the scope of services.  In October 2014, the Board 

approved award of the contract to Networking Institute of Technology, Inc. (NIT) for a 
formal assessment of the following four IT systems and components. 

 
1. Network Infrastructure 

2. PowerSchool 

3. Data Central 
4. MUNIS 

 
DISCUSSION:  NIT conducted the assessment for the purpose of determining that 

CCSD has deployed an adequate level of protection to safeguard data and information, 
and to ensure that CCSD’s services and information are available to meet mission 

requirements.   
 

NIT measured the District’s IT security controls against the National Institute of 
Standards and Technology (NIST) framework, which is inclusive of the following 18 IT 

Security Control families.   
 

AC – Access Controls 
AT – Security Awareness Training 

AU – Audit and Accountability 

CA – Security Assessment and Authorization 
CM – Configuration Management 

CP – Contingency Planning 
IA – Identification and Authentication 

IR – Incident Reports 
MA – System Maintenance 

MP – Media Protection 
PE – Physical and Environmental 

PL – Security Planning 
PM – Security Program Management 

PS – Personnel Security 
RA – Risk Assessment 

SA – System and Services Acquisition 
SC – System and Communications 

SI – System and Information Integrity 

 



 

The results are presented as whether the District has attained or not attained the 

control in accordance with the NIST guidelines. 
 

Control 
Family 

Total 
Controls 

Evaluated for 
All Systems 

Number of 
Attained 

Controls for All 
Systems 

Number of 
Not Attained 

Controls for All 
Systems 

AC 17 6 11 
AT 4 0 4 

AU 11 2 9 

CA 7 1 6 
CM 11 0 11 

CP 9 0 9 

IA 8 5 3 

IR 8 1 7 

MA 6 5 1 

MP 7 2 5 

PE 16 5 11 

PL 4 0 4 

PM 16 4 12 

PS 8 5 3 

RA 4 1 3 

SA 9 0 9 

SC 19 13 6 

SI 11 6 5 
Totals 175 56 119 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

It is hereby recommended that the Charleston County School District Board of Trustees 
accept the results of the IT Security Audit 2015, as presented by Networking Institute 

of Technology, Inc.  
 

FUNDING SOURCE/COST:  To be determined. 

 
FUTURE FISCAL IMPACT:  To be determined. 

 
DATA SOURCES:   

IT Security Audit 2015 
Cathleen Milne 

John McCarron 
 

PREPARED BY: 
Cathleen Milne 

John McCarron 
 

REVIEWED BY LEGAL SERVICES:  N/A 



 

 

REVIEWED BY PROCUREMENT SERVICES:  N/A 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
IT Security Audit 2015 Final Presentation 

Information Technology Risk Remediation Plan 



Charleston County 
School District

IT Security Audit 2015

Final Presentation

Networking Institute of Technology, Inc. (NIT)

P.O. Box 9732, Baldwin, MD 21013

May 4, 2015



Purpose and Scope

Purpose

Determine whether CCSD has deployed the adequate level of 

protection to safeguard data and information, and to ensure that 

CCSD’s services and information are available to meet mission 

requirements. 

Scope

The following four CCSD systems and components were evaluated:

 Network Infrastructure

 Power School

 Data Central

 MUNIS

5/4/2015 CCSD 1



Objective

Objective

Evaluate the security controls implemented in support of the CCSD’s 

four systems in accordance with industry-best standards and National 

Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) guidelines. 

NIST provides industry-best practices for Threat Identification and Risk 

Assessment Methodology.

5/4/2015 CCSD 2



NIST IT Security Control Families

Access Controls 

Security Awareness and Training 

Audit and Accountability

Security Assessment and Authorization

Configuration Management

Contingency Planning

Identification and Authentication

Incident Response

System Maintenance

Media Protection

Physical and Environmental 

Security Planning

Security Program Management

Personnel Security

Risk Assessment

System and Services Acquisition

System and Communications 

System and Information Integrity

5/4/2015 CCSD 3



Summary of Findings

Security controls – safeguards or countermeasures to reduce security 

risks

 175 Security Controls Evaluated  

 56 Attained Controls 

 119 Not Attained Controls

CCSD 45/4/2015

Risk Level Number of Findings

Very High 0

High 61

Moderate 53

Low 5

Very Low 56



Vulnerability and 

Web Scans
 Network Devices 

 Workstations

 Servers

 Wireless Controllers

 Wireless Access Points

 Surveillance Cameras

 Surveillance Camera Servers

 Power School

 Data Central

 MUNIS – scans not permitted by vendor

CCSD 55/4/2015



Priority Recommendations

1. Create the position of Senior Information Security Officer to 

implement the NIST Risk Management Framework. 

2. Identify the budget requirements to implement security safeguards 

to reduce the level of security vulnerabilities to an acceptable level.

3. Develop formal IT Security Policies and Procedures in accordance 

with NIST guidelines. 

4. Develop and implement a comprehensive IT Security awareness 

training program.

5/4/2015 CCSD 6



Priority Recommendations Continued

5. Establish a formal Information Security Agreement with Tyler 

Technologies.

6. Develop and implement a formal IT Contingency Plan. 

7. Develop and implement a formal Configuration Change Control 

process.

8. Develop and implement a formal Continuous Monitoring Plan. 

9. Analyze and mitigate critical and high risk vulnerabilities that were 

detected during the automated vulnerability scanning.

5/4/2015 CCSD 7



Priority Recommendations Continued

10. Develop and implement a formal patch management process.

11. Develop an authorized software list for CCSD systems and 

implement safeguards to prevent users from installing unauthorized 

software on individual systems. 

12. Develop a formal audit process.

13. Develop and implement a process to monitor information system 

accounts and review user accounts.

5/4/2015 CCSD 8



Priority Recommendations Continued

14. Develop and implement a process to lock user accounts after a 

pre-defined number of invalid login attempts.

15. Develop and conduct role-based security training for personnel 

with assigned security roles and responsibilities. 

16. Develop and implement a formal Incident Response Plan. 

17. Develop and implement a formal process for storing media and 

implement protection mechanisms to safeguard the media.

18. Install a fire suppression system in the data center.

5/4/2015 CCSD 9



Priority Recommendations Continued

19. Re-locate data center to a different location or install compensating 

controls to mitigate risks to an acceptable level.

20. Develop and implement a formal security authorization process in 

accordance with NIST guidelines.

5/4/2015 CCSD 10



Proposed Org. Structure

5/4/2015 CCSD 11

Chief Information Security 

Officer

Operational 

Security 

· Security Policies

· Procedures

· Security Assessments

· Security Plans

· Security Training

· Audit Logs

· Security Documentation

Policy and 

Compliance

Business Intelligence and 

Information Management

Educational Technology

Technology Projects
Technology Support

Network Operations 

Technology Projects
Technology Projects

Superintendent

Information Technology 

Office

· Firewalls

· Perimeter Security 

· Intrusion Detection

· Patch Management

· Configuration Control

· Contingency Planning

· Incident Response

· Vulnerability Scanning



NIST IT Security Framework

 Comprehensive set of security controls for conducting 

assessments

 Clearly identifies what should be evaluated

 Recognized as industry-best practices for conducting assessments

 Updated and maintained by NIST IT security professionals

 Part of a larger set of free security guidelines published by NIST

 Functions as a standard, non-proprietary framework 

 Developed to help achieve more secure information systems 

5/4/2015 CCSD 12



TO:   Audit and Finance Committee 
  Cathleen Milne, Director of Internal Audit 

FROM: John McCarron, Chief Information Officer 

DATE:  May 4, 2015 

SUBJECT:  Information Technology Risk Remediation Plan 
 
Known and emerging cybersecurity threats exploit the increased complexity 
of critical computing systems connected to the Internet, placing Charleston 
County School District systems and data at risk.  To better understand data 
privacy and other security risks, CCSD engaged Networking Institute of 
Technology, Inc. (NIT) to complete a security assessment of key systems.   

NIT utilized the National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) 
framework for "Security and Privacy Controls for Federal Information 
Systems and Organizations" to assess the security and privacy risk for the 
CCSD network infrastructure, MUNIS financial information system, 
PowerSchool student information system, and Data Central reporting 
systems.   

The NIT findings from the 175 security controls evaluated determined the 
following: 

• No controls were categorized as very high risk 
• 62 controls were categorized as high risk 
• 53 controls were categorized as moderate risk 
• 4 controls were categorized as low risk 
• 56 attained controls 

Based on these findings, the Information Technology Department will work 
with Internal Audit and NIT to: 

1. Complete a  written response to the risk assessment findings and 
recommendations.  

2. Describe what corrections have been planned, who will implement 
the corrections, and the phased implementation dates. 

3. Explain why certain recommendations will not be implemented (if 
applicable). 

The high-level plan is to remediate the known risks in phases starting in 
priority order with the highest identified risk.   We will integrate the risk 
remediation strategies into existing Internal Audit processes and tracking 
mechanisms and will provide annual plans and updates.   

3999 Bridge View Drive ● North Charleston, SC 29405 ● tel. (843) 566-7388 ● www.ccsdschools.com 

Michael Bobby 
Acting Superintendent of Schools 

John W. McCarron 
Chief Information Officer 

Information Technology 

3999 Bridge View Drive 

North Charleston, SC 29405 

Tel. (843) 566-8145 

Fax (843) 529-3929 



For the 2015-16 school year, Information Technology plans to focus on the 
top 5 recommendations from NIT: 

1. Create the position of Senior Information Security Officer to 
implement the NIST Risk Management Framework.  

2. Identify the budget requirements to implement security safeguards to 
reduce the level of security vulnerabilities to an acceptable level. 

3. Develop formal IT Security Policies and Procedures in accordance 
with NIST guidelines.  

4. Develop and implement a comprehensive IT Security awareness 
training program. 

5. Establish a formal Information Security Agreement with Tyler 
Technologies. 

In order to accomplish these top 5 recommendations and subsequent 
phases, additional budget funds will be required.  For 2015-16, the most 
critical GOF budget need will be to add the position of Senior Information 
Security Officer estimated at approximately $115,000 with salary and 
benefits.   

                                                Page 2 of 2

































































































































































 

 
TO
FR
DA
SU
 

RE
ap

to 
 

In 
the

sch

ma
sch

  
Th

 
 

Re
 

 

 

Co
 

 

O:  
ROM: 
ATE:  
UBJECT: 

ECOMMEND
proved a pl

 consider an

 accordance
erefore rec

hedule for i

ade to tran
hool year 20

e material i

espectfully s

Actin

Deputy

 

ommittee Re

Mr

Audit

 

Board of Tr
Michael L. 

May 11, 20

Middle Sch

DATION:  T
lan to chang

nd approve t

e with the im
ommended 

mplementat

sportation s
016-2017. 

s submitted

ubmitted: 

Mr. Mich

ng Superinte

Dr. Lisa
y Superinten

Curtis 

Dire

 

 

 

 
  

ecommenda

. Todd Garre

t & Finance 

75 C

rustees 
Bobby 

015 

ool Transpo

The Charlest
ge bell time

the followin

mplementat
 that the 

tion that wi

services wo

d for: 

ael Bobby  

endent of Sc

a Herring 
ndent for Ac

Norman 

ector 

tion(s): 

ett, Chair 

 Committee 

Calhoun Stre

Student
BOARD

ortation Adju

ton County 
es for transp

g recomme

tion of the o
Charleston 

ill be fully i

ould comme

  Act

  Op

chools 

cademics 

 

eet, Charlest

 
t Transpor

D AGENDA 

ustment 

 School Dist
portation se

ndation: 

option for b
County Sc

n effect and

ence beginn

tion  

pen  

  

Item v

ton, SC 294

tation 
ITEM 

trict Board o
ervices (See

bell times as
chool Distri

d operationa

ning the firs

 Information

 Executive 

voted on an

401 

of Trustees 
e item 10.1H

s approved 
ct Board o

al by July 1

st day of sc

n 

 

 

 

 

 

 

d recomme

5-4-15 

 having con
H) is now h

 on May 11
of Trustees 

15, 2016.  T

chool for th

nded for Bo

nsidered and
ereby asked

, 2015, it is
 approve a

The changes

he academic

oard  

d 
d 

s 
a 

s 

c 












































































































	.5-11-15 Board Agenda
	10.1B IT Security Audit 2015 (with attachments)
	IT Security Audit 2015.pdf
	ATTACHMENT - NIT 2015 CCSD Project Final Presentation
	ATTACHMENT 2 - IT Risk Remediation Plan

	10.1C Headstart
	10.1D 2017-2022 Capital Program
	10.1E Sinking Fund Reallocation
	10.1F Fraser Building Demo
	10.1G 1st Reading of Budget 2016
	10.1H Middle School Transportation 1
	10.1I MS Bell Times - Recommendation 2
	11.1A Timeline for Receiving Charter School Applications
	11.1B Laura Brown Funds



